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St. Ignatius Church is a rubble| stone, one story rectangular structure
of five bays, with a tall tower| at the west end and a rubble stone two
Story rectangular addition of fbur bays to the south. The thrce westerly
bays, of approximately cqual sige, comprise the original 35' x 50' church
of 1786-1792; the two casterly bays, each slightly longer than the three
original bays,; comprise the 34" addition of 1848. The tower was added
“externally at the west ead in 1865. The two story wing to the south was
added in 1822 as a Priest's residence, later gutted of interior partitions
for use as a parish hall. A small frame sacristy was added to the south
side of the east bay in 1887.

Arched windows retain their original frames with complete exterior archi-
traves broken by wood impost blocks and keystones; the south windows, and
a semi-circular window in' the cast gable, retain their original moulded
sills, while the north windows, and two lower east windows, have concrete
replacement sills. The remains |of muntins, defining rectangular lights,
33 over 20, can be seen in the sash of all north and south windows, cut
out in 1887 for stained glass. |The three windows of the east end retain
their original sash, intact. e thirteen lights of the semi-circular
‘window in the gable suggests the original pattern in the heads of the side
windows of the nave. '

The stonework of the original central bay on the south side suggests that
a door was filled in, and the pitch of the interior sill is slightly dif-
ferent. A door in this location is consistent with English church design
in this period, but there is no known record of a door at this location,

No window exists in the south side 0f the west bay; a small, square
headed door at the foot of the gallery stair (see below) opens into the
south wing.

Above the double doors centered on the west end is a Palladian .window
under a simple stone relieving arch. Stucco covers rubble stone between
this relieving arch and the frame structure of the Palladian motif. The
tower hides this feature externally, but it may be seen From the second
story of the tower. Sash of the|side lights remain, but the center sash
have been replaced by utilitarian doors of the late nineteenth century,
providing access to the upper stories of the tower from the interior
gallery.

The 1848 windows are nearly perfect copies of the originals, with very
slight variations in the mouldings -- an unusual instance of an early con-
scious attempt to match original work.

The three windows of the cast end were relocated there in 1848 from the
""pentagonal sacristy' (probably an apse or apsidal shaped projection con-
sisting of five sides of a regular octagon) which this addition replaced.

(See Continuation Sheet #1)
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#7 Description (Continucd) )

The simple wood cornice, showing no evidence of the extension, is probably
of 1848, or later.

The roof of the nave is now covered with slate, but under the roof of the
1822 south wing, original wood| shingles survive in situ on the nave roof,
of cypress or pine, round butted, fastened with wrought iron nails; the
shingles clearly show about thirty years' weathering.

The double west doors, each with three partially raised panels, together
form a typical six pancl door design. They may be original, or may date
from the 1848 extension; while they now swing outwardly, they originally
swung inwardly, and wrought iron brackets remain in the door frame which
once held a wooden security bar.

Above a wainscot to windowsill height, the walls and ceilings are plastered,
the latter semi-eliptical in profile, with no.cornice or other break at the
spring line. The floor is of wood.

L] '
The wainscot of the original structure has a moulded baseboard and fully
raised panels, while the wainscot in the 1848 extension has panels partially
raised, and a slightly different cap moulding, another instance of later
work consciously trying to be matched to original.

Windowsills are boldly pitched up to the exterior sills, and the windows
themselves are set close to the exterior surface of the walls. The deep
jambs are plastered, without trim.

A choir gallery occupies the west bay, supported by the west wall and four
square columns, but not by the south and north walls, which are about 4 1/2'
beyond the limits of the gallery. The square, fluted columns are of hand-
planed material, with moulded caps and bases, probably original. The
gallery floor structure is faced with a full cornice, including a crown
moulding and dentils. The gallery was extended about 4' to the east to
accomodate the present organ (see below), and the mouldings and railings
were matched for this extension, which is supported on diagonal brackets
from the four columns.

An open string stair riSes from the southwest corner of the nave. The
square newels of the stair, and of the gallery, appear as four square
ballusters, spaced apart dbout by their own width, joined top and bottom

and capped by the moulded rall, with curved easements, further supported

by square ballusters. A half rail is applied to the opposite wall, re-
flecting the same pattern. Mortises in the top of the gallery-rail sug-
gest the former existence of a secondary rail above, perhaps as a musician's
rail. A similar stair rail exists in a contemporary, carefully designed
brick house about two miles distant.

(See Continuation Sheet #2)

GPO 921.724




Form 10-300a
(July 196%)

HA-41

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR STATE
NATIONAL PARK SERVICE ‘ Maryviand
NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES |[counTy 3
Harfor
INVENTORY - NOMINATION FORM T CHhs
ENTRY NUMBER DATE

(Continuation Sheet): 3

The
Bost
inst

the
entha

The

repl

The
hori

trus

the

(Number all entries)

Deseription (Continucd)

frece-standing walnut cased organ is a tracker-action instrument of

about 8 1/2 ranks, two manuels and pedals, made by Hook and Hastings of

on and installed in 1884 |it is -onc of the few surviving unaltered
ruments of this type and age in America. The superb acoustics of

long rectangular structureg with its arched plaster ceiling further
nces the excellent tonal quality of this instrument.

ceiling plaster is applied.on sawn lathe, but the blocking for the

profile in the original scction is fastened to the wood trusses by wrought
iron nails, indicating that the profileé is original, but the plaster was

aced at the time of the 1848 extension; or later,

A false east wall hides the three east windows from interior view. The
wooden floor structure is a twentieth century replacement; the original
floor was also of wood, aboveia crawl space..

roof is supported by modified scissors trusses with king posts and a
zontal chord. Seven trusses of hewn oak, about 8' on center, are

above the original section, but only two of similar design, in sawn pine,
are above the 1848 extension. Purlins at the third points diagonal wind
braces and common rafters complete the roof structure of the original
portion, but wind braces werc omitted in the 1848 extension. Two
longitudinal steel trusses, spanning from the west gable to the east, on
either side of the king post, were bolted together in place within the
attic in 1970 to relieve the excessive stress imposed on the original

ses and bearing walls. The steecl trusses were designed by structural

engineer Carl L. Redd of Baltimore.

The pews date. from the 1848 extension, and were, prior to 1911, arranged
with two side aisles, a wide bank of psws in the center of the nave and a
narrower bank of pews between each side aisle and the exterior wall. Now,

shorter pews from the sides have been joined to form pews of, length

equalling the original center pews, and they are arranged on either side of
a center aisle, with narrow aisles against the exterior walls. A few
benches survive which may be the original 1786-1792 pews.

Photographs are preserved of sﬁverﬁl stenciling schemes which have
appeared on the interior walls, the first applied in 1887.

Sanctuary furnishings are mostly of the twentieth century, but portions
of the more ornate late nineteenth century fittings survive in storage.
In the sacristy is an interesting early nineteenth century vestment case,
said also to have served as a sacristy altar and tﬂhernaclc Also in the
sacristy is an early safe, locked with a massive key.

[y
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#7 Description (Continued)

Four stories of the five story tower of 1865 are of brick, stuccoed, and
originally painted in imitation of ashlar. The first three stories, at

a point above the nave reefl ridge, are finished with a wood cornice.

Double doors open into tbﬂ ground floor from cach of the three exp0=ed
sides, and a six over six window on each exposed side lights each upper
story. The fourth story, its walls slightly recessed from the lower
walls, is decorated by wood pilasters at the corners, supporting a second,
full cornice. A six over six window is in each side. In the fifth story,
which is of frame construction, a short podium, recessed from the fourth
story, supports four free-standing round Tuscan columns which, in turn,
support a third cornice and a small domical roof covered with sheet copper.
A cross is on top of the dome. The frame belfry walls, with arched panels
of louvres on each side, is within the columns.

Heavy timber corner posts, girts and diagonal bracing built within the
brick walls, visible inside, were undoubtedly included to absorb racking
forces caused by the 1100 pound bell, made by Joshua Regester of Baltimore,
installed when the tower was cnmploted This bell, unusually large for a
parish church, rings with a rich, deep tone, audible at least three miles
away in the right weather conditions.

In the south wing, a door in both east and west sides of the bay next to
the church opened into what was, originally, a stair 'hall; the stair is
next to the church. All interior partitions were gutted late in the nine-
teenth century, and the addition was converted to a parish hall, its use
today. A small, two story frame service addition at the south end replaced
an earlier, one story frame addition in 1971. All windows of the south
wing are six over six.

#11 Form Prepared By (Continued)
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

St. Ignatius' Church in Harford County is one of the few known eighteenth
century churches in Maryland and is the oldest extant church in the
Archdiocese of Baltimere. The lack of eighteenth century Catholic
churches in a colony founde&lby Roman Catholics indicates the strict
nature of English anti-popery laws. Roman Catholics could not vote or
hold office; mass was allowed but only if celebrated in private homes.
However, after independence could Roman Catholics openly worship and
erect churches. St. Ignatius' Church, constructed between 1786 and 1792,
provides a reminder of the religious freedom won by the Revolution and
guaranteed by the Constitution.

St. Ignatius is located on a two acre tract purchased by Charles Sewall,
S. J. in 1779. Sylvester Boarman, S. J., supervised the construction of
the building; his fellow Jesuits provided the first parish priests. The
preponderance of Jesuits in the early history of St. Ignatius' exemplifies
the major role the Society of Jesus played in the foundation of the Roman
Catholic church in Maryland. The order, dedicated to missionary work,
came to Southern Maryland with the first settlers. A century later (1743)
Jesuits acquired property in|Harford County and established the Mission of
St. Joseph. They constructed a dwelling and reserved one room for a
chapel for their use and for the community.

The Jesuit Mission of St. Joseph administered St. Ignatius' Church through
the second decade of the nineteenth century. In 1813 the mission was un-
able to provide priests and for two years the parish had no clergy.
Archbishop John Carroll provided a priest from the regular clergy of the
Archdiocese of Baltimore for |a year. Then the Jesuits resumed responsi--
bility. 1In 1817 Archbishop Ambrose Maréchal assumed control of the church
which has remained in the archdiocese to the present.

During the nineteenth century the parish grew as is evidenced by the ex-
pansion on to and around the joriginal church. In 1822 the south wing was
added for a residence. :

The original sacristy was enlarged by thirty-five feet in 1848 replacing
the first pentagonal structure. This proved insufficient by 1887 when a
third sacristy was constructed on to the south facade at the castern end.
The final year of the Civil War saw the construction of the bell tower and
installation of the bell. After a closure of two years the church reopened
in 1969. This inaugurated a thorough renovation of the building (1969~
1970) and a rencewed interest in its history.
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